
Page 1 of 2 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

JONESVILLE CITY HALL | 265 E. CHICAGO STREET | JONESVILLE, MI 

JUNE 18, 2025 - 6:30 P.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / A MOMENT OF SILENCE 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA [Action Item] 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Citizens may address the Council at this time, subject to the Rules for Addressing the City Council. *   

4. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 

A. Kevin Collins, Hillsdale County Board of Commissioners 

B. Abe Dane, Hillsdale County Clerk 

C. Hannah Jordan, Domestic Harmony Executive Director 

5. COUNCIL MINUTES 

A. May 21, 2025 Meeting [Action Item] 

B. May 29, 2025 Special Meeting [Action Item] 

6. BOARD AND COMMISSION MINUTES [Action Item] 

A. Economic Development Partnership of Hillsdale County – April 10, 2025 (Gray) 

B. Downtown Development Authority – May 13, 2025 (Arno) 

C. Planning Commission – May 14, 2025 (Guyse) 

7. PUBLIC HEARING AND SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION 

A. Truth in Taxation Public Hearing  

B. Fiscal Year 2025-26 Operating Budget and Ad Valorem Mill Levy  

1. Public Hearing 

2. Resolution 2025-13 – Adopt July 2025-June 2026 Budget,  [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

General Appropriations Act, and Ad Valorem Mill Levy 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

A. None 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Resolution 2025-14 – Fee Schedule [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

B. Adopt the Fiscal Year 2025-26 to 2030-31 Capital Improvement Plan [Action Item] 

C. Fiscal Year 2025-26 Employee Compensation [Action Item] 

D. Contract for Services – Domestic Harmony [Action Item] 

E. Consider Purchase – WWTP Pickup Truck [Action Item] 

F. Iron Removal Plant Well Pump Repair [Action Item] 

G. Schedule a Public Hearing – Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate 

and Transfer of Certificate #2016-115 [Action Item] 

H. Consider Offering Real Property for Sale [Action Item] 

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

A. June 2025 Totalling $94,201.39 [Action Item] 



 
 
 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

June 18, 2025 

Page 2 of 2 

 
11. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

A. Public Safety  

1. Police – Public Safety Director Lance 

2. Fire – Deputy Chief Riggs  

B. Water/Wastewater Treatment Plant – Superintendent Mullaly 

C. Department of Public Works – Superintendent Crouch 

D. Cash Report – Finance Director Spahr 

12. CONSIDER CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO MCL 15.268 (1)(a)  

OF THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

A. City Manager Annual Review 

B. Council Action in Open Session 

13. ADJOURN 

 

* Rules for Addressing the Jonesville City Council (Adopted 11/20/24) 

1. When a person addresses the Council, he or she shall state his or her name and home address.  

2. Remarks should be limited to matters before the Council, to Council business or policy, or to issues of general 

concern that the Council has the authority to recommend or act upon.  

3. Persons addressing the Council shall limit their comments to not more than five (5) minutes or other time limit set 

by the Chair. Persons addressing the Council may have comments presented by other individuals, but may not 

delegate additional speaking time to others.  The Clerk will maintain the official time and notify the speakers 

when their time is up. 

4. Remarks shall be addressed to the Chair in a courteous tone.  Persons addressing Council who fail to conduct 

themselves with decorum may be removed from the meeting at the discretion of the Chair. 

5. No person shall have the right to speak more than once unless additional opportunities are granted by the Chair. 

6. Council members and staff will generally not respond to audience participation.  Matters may be referred by the 

Council to the City Manager who may also be directed to provide a report at a subsequent meeting or date. 



To: Jonesville City Council 

From: Jeffrey M. Gray, City Manager 

Date: June 13, 2025 

Re: Manager Report and Recommendations – June 18, 2025 Council Meeting 

 

5.  Council Minutes [Action Item] 

This item is reserved for action on the minutes of the previous Council regular meeting. 

 

6. Board and Commission Minutes [Action Item] 

Board and commission minutes for the prior month are attached.  The name of the Council/staff 

representative to the board is indicated in parentheses.  Following any discussion or questions about the 

board minutes, the appropriate action of Council would be a motion to receive and place the minutes on 

file.  A single motion can be taken up for all of the minutes. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING AND SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION 

7. A. Truth in Taxation Public Hearing 

The City Council will hold this public hearing for the purpose of hearing comments about maintaining 

the current 16.388 millage rate.  Without the hearing, the millage rate would permanently be adjusted 

down by 0.6572 mills to 15.7308 mills.  If the proposed increase to retain our current millage is not 

approved, there will be a resulting reduction in operating revenue of 4.18%, or $46,960 in revenue to 

the general fund and local streets.  In summary, what is advertised as an increase would maintain our 

current millage rate.  Please refer to the attached hearing notice. 

 

7. B. 1. Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget Public Hearing 

The property tax rate of 16.388 mills (unchanged) proposed to be levied to support the proposed budget 

is the subject of this hearing.  As discussed at the May 28th budget work session, a balanced budget has 

been presented for consideration.  The proposed budget was made available for public view following 

the May meeting.  Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget highlights and fund summaries have been discussed at the 

previous two Council meetings and can be presented at the meeting. 

 

7. B. 2. Resolution 2025-13 – Adopt July 2025-June 2026 Budget,  

General Appropriations Act and Ad Valorem Tax Levy [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

Action item related to the public hearing.  The Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget Committee is proposing the 

adoption of a balanced budget for the upcoming fiscal year as outlined in the attached Resolution.  Note 

that line-item detail of each respective fund’s expenses and revenues are identified in the complete 

operating budget.  The detailed budget, Capital Improvement Plan, estimated FY 2025-26 Fund 

Balances, and Employee Wage Scale are being sent as a “virtual budget binder” via separate email.  The 

complete operating budget can also be viewed on the City website. The Budget Committee and 

Department Heads worked diligently to present a balanced FY 2025-26 Budget.   

 

This fiscal year budget continues a focus on the stewardship of the public’s resources.  The budget 

proposes continued maintenance of streets and other public infrastructure.  Not only would essential 

services be provided, but valued services like leaf and brush pickup are fully funded in the proposed 

budget.  Essential Departmental equipment and facilities improvements are proposed. I recommend 



Manager Report and Recommendations 

June 18, 2025 Council Meeting 

Page 2 of 4 

 
adoption of the Fiscal year 2025-26 Budget as presented by the Budget Committee.  A roll call vote is 

required.  Please refer to the attached Resolution 2025-13 and Budget Summary, and the Budget 

Hearing Notice. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

8. A. None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

9. A. Resolution 2025-14 – Fee Schedule [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

The Budget Committee is proposing the adoption of the Departmental fees as outlined in the attached 

resolution.  The Schedule has been updated from the prior year to reflect the recent adoption of the 

Municipal Civil Infractions Ordinance (see Attachment D).   

 

Also, Attachment E includes the traditional increase to water and sewer rates and charges.  The rate 

increase is necessary to attain revenue levels to balance the Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds.  

Pursuant to Chapter 34 of the Code of Ordinances, rates are adjusted to keep pace with the United 

States Federal Consumer Price Index.  The Fiscal Year 2025-26 rate increase for water is 2.25 percent; 

the increase for sewer is 2.6 percent.  The net increase is significantly below the 2024 CPI of 2.9%.  The 

increases are sufficient to provide services and they reflect the projected schedule of increases from the 

2019 rate studies.  The monthly residential base bill (2,000 gallons) will increase by $1.20.  The average 

monthly residential bill (based on 4,000 gallons of use) will increase a total of $1.86.  These increases are 

necessary to ensure the ongoing maintenance of the water distribution system, future rehabilitation and 

maintenance of the Iron Removal Plant, and coverage of costs associated with the operation and 

maintenance of the wastewater treatment plant and sewage collection system.  These proposed rate 

increases are reflected in the projected revenues in the FY 2025-26 Budget.  I recommend adoption of 

Resolution 2025-14, as recommended by the Budget Committee.  A roll call vote is necessary to approve 

the resolution.  Please refer to the attached Resolution 2025-14. 

 

9. B. Fiscal Year 2025-26 to 2030-31 Capital Improvement Plan [Action Item] 

The Capital Improvement Plan that summarizes anticipated major capital projects for the coming fiscal 

year, along with the following five years.  The document is a companion to the annual operating budget 

and is intended to help with long range budgeting.  The plan has been reviewed by the Budget 

Committee and recommended for approval and was reviewed in the prior budget work sessions.  The 

Planning Commission approved the document at their meeting on May 14, 2025.  I recommend a 

motion to approve the FY 2025-26 to 2030-31 Capital Improvement Plan.   Please refer to the CIP 

provided with the full operating budget. 

 

9. C. Fiscal Year 2025-26 Employee Compensation [Action Item] 

The budget reflects, as recommended by the City Council Budget Committee, a cost-of-living increase of 

3% for all full- and part-time employees, and 3.4% for those employees who have reached the top of the 

step scale.  The City adopted a new wage scale for all full-time employees in 2019 to aid with employee 

retention and recruitment.  Eligible employees would also move to the next step in the adopted wage 

scale.  The increases are reflected in the wage chart that was included with the full operating budget. 

 



Manager Report and Recommendations 

June 18, 2025 Council Meeting 

Page 3 of 4 

 
The proposed wage increases are reflected in the budget presented under item 7.B. of this agenda.  The 

wage increases would be effective after the start of the fiscal year on July 1, 2025.  Please refer to the 

proposed Employee Wage Scale provided with the full operating budget.  

 

9. D. Contract for Services – Domestic Harmony [Action Item] 

Consistent with prior years, Council designated $1,000 for contracted services in the upcoming Fiscal 

Year 2025-26 budget with Domestic Harmony. Executive Director Hannah Jordan will be offering a 

presentation on Domestic Harmony’s services to benefit City residents.  A motion is necessary to 

authorize payment of the contract in the amount of $1,000 in the fiscal year that begins July 1, 2025 and 

to authorize the City Manager to execute the same. Please refer to the attached Contract for Services. 

 

9. E.  Consider Purchase – WWTP Pickup Truck [Action Item] 

The current fiscal year budget includes funds of up to $45,000 for replacement of the 2007 Wastewater 

Treatment Plant pickup truck.  Superintendent Mullaly has obtained a MI-Deal price for a Ford supercab 

pickup.  MI-Deal is a state system of competitively bid prices for government vehicles, equipment, and 

services.  A local quote was also obtained locally from Stillwell Ford, which at $41,288.40, is 7.8% less 

than the MI-Deal price.  Quotes are also attached for comparable vehicles by other manufacturers.  I 

support Superintendent Mullaly’s recommendation to purchase the vehicle from Stillwell Ford.  A 

motion is necessary to award the contract to Stillwell Ford in the amount of $41,288.40 and to authorize 

the City Manager to execute all necessary documents.  Please refer to the memorandum and 

attachments from Superintendent Mullaly. 

 

9. F.  Iron Removal Plant Well Pump Repair [Action Item] 

As indicated in the attached memorandum from Superintendent Mullaly, recent performance testing of 

well pump #2 shows that it is due for overhaul.  The City has a long-standing relationship with Peerless 

Midwest, Inc. for service of our pumps.  I support Superintendent Mullaly’s recommendation that the 

purchasing policy be waived and the contract awarded to Peerless Midwest.  The cost of the repair will 

depend on the extent of work required; $24,550 if limited to normal wear parts, or $31,200 if more 

extensive is required on physical inspection.  Superintendent Mullaly is also recommending a video 

inspection of the well casing.  This is an anticipated repair and sufficient funds are included in the 

current fiscal year budget for the proposed work.  A motion is necessary to waive the purchasing policy 

and to authorize the work to be completed by Peerless Midwest, Inc. in accordance with the quote.  

Please refer to the memorandum and attachments from Superintendent Mullaly. 

 

9. G. Schedule a Public Hearing – Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificate 

 and Transfer of Certificate #2016-115  [Action Item] 

The Planning Commission recently approved a site plan for a 6,000 square foot addition to the NEFCO 

property located at 113 Deal Parkway.  This addition to an industrial facility is eligible for a tax 

exemption, pursuant to Public Act 198 of 1974.  The property was recently sold and a previously issued 

exemption certificate is eligible for transfer to the new owner.  A motion is necessary to schedule a 

public hearing for Wednesday, July 16, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at the Jonesville City Hall, located at 265 E. 

Chicago Street.  Please refer to the attached Public Hearing Notice. 

 

9. H.  Consider Offering Real Property for Sale [Action Item] 

A couple of years ago, the City acquired the residential property located at 148 Jermaine Street and 

utilized grant funds to demolish the blighted structures.  It was acquired with the intent of making it 



Manager Report and Recommendations 

June 18, 2025 Council Meeting 

Page 4 of 4 

 
available for private development as a residential property.  The City’s policy permits the sale of real 

property by simple listing, provided the goals of the sale, the fair market value of the property, and any 

special criteria of sale are determined.  The property is stated to have a true cash value of $15,461 by 

the Assessor; staff has requested an opinion of whether this represents fair market value based on 

recent comparable sales.  Staff is seeking Council’s concurrence that the goal of the sale is to place the 

property back on the tax roll for future development as a residential property; with an asking price at 

the fair market value, as determined by the City Assessor.  At this time, staff is recommending that the 

sale be advertised by signage on the property and a posting on the City website, with no payment of 

broker or realtor fees.  A motion stating the terms of sale is necessary.  Received offers would be 

brought to Council for action; the City Charter requires a public hearing and the affirmative votes of a 

minimum of five (5) members of Council to complete the sale. 

 

12. Consider Closed Session Pursuant to MCL 15.268 (1)(a)  

of the Open Meetings Act [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, a public body may enter into a closed session to consider a 

periodic personnel evaluation of a public employee.  Manager Gray is requesting a closed session for this 

purpose.  The evaluation is a verbal dialogue between the Council and Manager.  It is necessary to take a 

roll call vote to enter into a closed session.  Following the closed session, it is necessary to enter back 

into open session and to take up a motion indicating the outcome of the Manager’s evaluation (i.e. 

outstanding performance, expected performance, needs improvement).  Please refer to the request for 

closed session. 

 

Correspondence: 

 Shaw Family: Thank You to Jonesville Fire Department 

 Protec Re: Membership 



1 
 

**Subject to Council Approval** 

 

JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Minutes of May 21, 2025 

 

A meeting of the Jonesville City Council was held on Wednesday, May 21, 2025 at the 
Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI.  Mayor Gerry Arno called the 
meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Council members present were: Andy Penrose, Dean Adair II, 
Chris Grider, Brenda Guyse, George Humphries Jr., and Annette Sands.   
 
Also present:  Manager Gray, DPW Supt. Crouch, Public Safety Director Lance, Finance 
Director Spahr, Attorney Lovinger, WWTP Supt. Mullaly, Deputy Clerk Baker, Lisa Adair, 
County Commissioner Kevin Collins, Nicole Benson, Chad Benson, Lucas Sparks and Dennis 
Haarer.    
 
Councilmember Andy Penrose led the Pledge of Allegiance and moment of silence. 
 
One item added to the agenda to change the date of the special meeting scheduled May 28th, 
2025.  A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by George Humphries Jr. to approve 
the agenda with one change.  All in favor.  Motion carried. 
 
Updates were given by County Commissioner Kevin Collins.  
  
A motion was made by Dean Adair II and supported by George Humphries Jr. to approve the 
minutes from April 16, 2025 as presented.  All in favor.  Motion carried.   
 
A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Andy Penrose to receive and place the 
minutes on file for the following board and commission meetings; Citizenship Committee from 
April 3, 2025 and May 1, 2025, Cemetery Committee minutes from April 9, 2025, Planning 
Commission minutes from April 9, 2025, Local Development Finance Authority minutes from 
April 16, 2025 and Materials Management Plan Committee minutes from April 23, 2025.  All in 
favor. Motion carried. 
 
A Public Hearing was opened at 6:34 p.m. for the purpose of hearing public comments on 
proposed Ordinance No. 225- Municipal Civil Infractions.  Safety Director Lance shared with 
council information on the history of enforcement of property maintenance and nuisance codes 
and how this ordinance would allow a change in how noncompliance can be addressed. 
Questions were answered by Safety Director Lance and Manager Gray. The Public Hearing 
closed at 6:47 p.m. 
       
Brenda Guyse made a motion and was supported by George Humphries Jr. to approve Ordinance 
No. 225.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes:  Andy Penrose, Dean Adair II, Chris Grider, Brenda Guyse, 
George Humphries Jr., Annette Sands and Gerry Arno.  Nays:  None.  Motion carried.  
 
Andy Penrose made a motion and was supported by Brenda Guyse to approve the amendments 
to Resolution 2025-10A - Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption. All in favor. Motion carried. 



2 
 

 
A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by George Humphries Jr. to approve the 
Resolution 2025-11 Contract for Improvements to Chicago Street (US-12). Roll Call Vote: Ayes:  
Andy Penrose, Dean Adair II, Chris Grider, Brenda Guyse, George Humphries Jr., Annette 
Sands and Gerry Arno.  Nays:  None.  Motion carried. 
 
Brenda Guyse made a motion and was supported Dean Adair II to approve Resolution 2025-12 
to designate the Treasurer and his or her deputy and designees to serve as the Municipal 
Ordinance Violations Bureau. Roll Call Vote: Ayes:  Andy Penrose, Dean Adair II, Chris Grider, 
Brenda Guyse, George Humphries Jr., Annette Sands and Gerry Arno.  Nays:  None.  Motion 
carried. 
 
A motion was made by Andy Penrose and was supported by Dean Adair II to approved Street 
Preventative Maintenance for the 2025-26 fiscal season to provide treatment of both Crack Fill 
and Chip/Fog Seal on various City streets.  All in favor.  Motion carried.  
 
Brenda Guyse made a motion and was supported by George Humphries Jr. to schedule a Public 
Hearing regarding the proposed Fiscal Year budget for July 1, 2025 thru June 30, 2026 and Truth 
in Taxation to be held at the Regular Council Meeting on Wednesday June 18, 2025.  All in 
favor.  Motion carried. 
 
Information was provided by Finance Director Spahr on the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Nine Month 
Budget Comparison. 
 
A motion was made by Dean Adair II and supported by Andy Penrose to approve the budget 
amendments for 2024-25 as presented. All in favor. Motion carried.  
 
A motion was made by Annette Sands and was supported by Dean Adair II to change the date for 
the special meeting for the second budget session to Thursday, May 29, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at 
Jonesville City Hall. The session is expected to cover Local and Major Streets, State Highway, 
Motor Vehicle Pool, and Debt Service. All in favor. Motion carried.  
 
A motion was made by Andy Penrose and was supported by Chris Grider to approve the 
Accounts Payable for May in the amount of $174,713.30.  All in favor.  Motion carried.  
 
Updates were shared by Department Heads and Manager Gray. 
 
A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and was supported by Chris Grider to adjourn the regular 
Council Meeting and enter the Fiscal Year 2025-26 Budget Work Session at 7:23 p.m.  All in 
favor. 
 
Manager Gray discussed the status of Capital Improvement Projects, and gave an overview of 
the proposed Fiscal Year 2025-26 Capital Improvement Plan.  Council reviewed the proposed 
Fiscal Year 2025-26 budgets for the following funds; General Fund, Downtown Development 
Authority, Local Development Finance Authority, Sewer Fund, and Water Fund.   
 



3 
 

Mayor Arno adjourned the meeting at 8:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
  
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
______________________________             ________________________________ 
Cynthia D. Means     Gerald E. Arno 
Clerk       Mayor  



**Subject to Council Approval** 

 

JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Special Budget Meeting 

Minutes of May 29, 2025 

 

A second budget meeting of the Jonesville City Council was held on Thursday, May 29, 2025 at 

the Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI.  Mayor Gerry Arno called the 

meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Council members present were: Andy Penrose, Dean Adair II, 

Chris Grider, Brenda Guyse, George Humphries Jr., and Annette Sands.    

 

Also present:  Manager Gray, DPW Superintendent Crouch, and Lisa Adair.   

 

A motion was made by Andy Penrose and supported by Brenda Guyse to approve the agenda as 

presented. All in favor.  Motion carried.  

 

There was no public comment. 

 

Manager Gray discussed the status of Capital Improvement Projects, and gave an overview of 

the proposed Fiscal Year 2025-26 Capital Improvement Plan.  Council reviewed the proposed 

Fiscal Year 2025-26 budgets for the following funds; Streets, Debt Service, and Motor Vehicle 

Pool.   

 

Mayor Arno adjourned the meeting at 6:58 p.m. 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

__________________________________             ______________________________                

LaNae Baker       Gerald E. Arno 

Deputy Clerk       Mayor 









Jonesville Downtown Development Authority 

Minutes of May 13, 2025 

 

Present: Gerry Arno, Abe Graves, Joe Ruden, Penny Sarles, Anthony Smith, and Rick Jenkins. 

 

Absent:   Don Toffolo, Chris Fast, and Mary Ellen Sattler. 

 

Also Present: Manager Jeff Gray 

 

Mayor Gerry Arno called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. 

 

Joe Ruden made a motion and was supported by Anthony Smith to approve the agenda as presented.  All 

in favor.  Absent:  Don Toffolo, Chris Fast, and Mary Ellen Sattler.  Motion carried. 

 

Anthony Smith made a motion and was supported by Penny Sarles to approve the February 11, 2025 

special meeting minutes.  All in favor.  Absent: Don Toffolo, Chris Fast, and Mary Ellen Sattler.  Motion 

carried. 

 

Anthony Smith made a motion and was supported by Abe Graves to accept the financial report through 

March 31, 2025.  All in favor. Absent: Don Toffolo, Chris Fast, and Mary Ellen Sattler.  Motion carried. 

 

Abe Graves made a motion and was supported by Joe Ruden to approve the grant application from 

Vintage 720 for a wall sign.  All in favor.  Absent: Don Toffolo, Chris Fast, and Mary Ellen Sattler.  

Motion carried. 

 

Anthony Smith made a motion and was supported by Abe Graves to recommend that City Council 

approve the proposed FY 2025-2026 budget, as recommended by the Budget Committee. All in favor.  

Absent:  Don Toffolo, Chris Fast, and Mary Ellen Sattler.  Motion carried. 

 

Manager Gray provided updates on the MDOT Bid Tabulation for the Road Diet and Streetscape project.  

The tentative construction schedule is from July 7th through September 15th.   

 

Riverfest updates were provided by Manager Gray.  The car show will be in the Middle School parking 

lot; Food vendors will be located along US-12 in the downtown block and in Carl Fast Park; Grosvenor 

House tours; Book sale at Jonesville District Library and various activities; Stem Boat Races; and a 

Pancake Breakfast at Jonesville Presbyterian Church.  Jonesvilleriverfest.com provides all the information 

for the weekend.   

 

Other updates were shared by Manager Gray. 

 

The next scheduled DDA meeting is Tuesday, July 8, 2025 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:54 a.m. 

 

Submitted by, 

 

 

 

LaNae Baker 

Deputy Clerk 



1 

 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 

PLANNING COMMISSION  

Minutes of May 14, 2025 

 

 

A City of Jonesville Planning Commission meeting was held on Wednesday, May 14, 2025 at 

the Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI.  Chair Christine Bowman called 

the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Present:  Christine Bowman, Jim Ackerson, Chad Benson, Brenda Guyse, Ken Koopmans, and 

Ryan Scholfield.   

                                    

Absent:   Kayla Thompson 

 

Also Present:  Jeff Gray, Charles Crouch, and Cindy Means.  

 

Christine Bowman led the Pledge of Allegiance and the moment of silence.   

 

Deputy Clerk LaNae Baker administered the Oath of Office to newly appointed board member 

Chad Benson. 

 

A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Ryan Scholfield to approve the agenda 

as presented.  All in favor. Absent: Kayla Thompson.  Motion carried.  

 

There were no public comments. 

 

There were no corrections to the Minutes of the April 9, 2025 meeting.  Chair Bowman declared 

the minutes approved as written.  

 

Kayla Thompson joined the meeting at 7:05 p.m. 

 

Motion by Kayla Thompson and supported by Brenda Guyse to recommend that the City 

Council consider approval of the Capital Improvement Plan as presented.  All in favor.   

Motion carried. 

 

Manager Gray, Superintendent Crouch and Clerk Cindy Means provided updates.   

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, June 11, 2025 at 7:00 p.m.    

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 

 

Submitted by, 

 

 

LaNae Baker 

Deputy Clerk 



2 

 

  



Notice of Public Hearing  
on Increasing Property Taxes

The City Council     
 name of governing body
of the City of Jonesville     
 name of taxing unit
will hold a public hearing on a proposed
increase of      0.6572     mills in the operating
 rate
tax millage rate to be levied in   2025   
 year
The hearing will be held on  Wednesday  
 day
June 18, 2025  at     6:30p.m.     
 date  time a.m./p.m
at   265 E, Chicago St. Jonesville, MI 49250   
 place-address

The date and location of the meeting to take action on the proposed 
additional millage will be announced at this public meeting.

If adopted, the proposed additional millage will increase 
operating revenues from ad valorem property taxes 4.18% over 
such revenues generated by levies permitted without holding a 
hearing. If the proposed additional millage rate is not approved 
the operating revenue will increase by 1.09% over the preceding 
year’s operating revenue.

The taxing unit publishing this notice, and identified below, has 
complete authority to establish the number of mills to be levied 
from within its authorized millage rate.

This notice is published by:
                                      City of Jonesville                                               

name of taxing unit
                     265 E. Chicago St. Jonesville, MI 49250                    

address 
                                        (517) 849-2104                                        

telephone
HF-41915855















CITY OF JONESVILLE 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

JULY 2025 - JUNE 2026 PROPOSED BUDGET 

 

June 18, 2025 

 
A public hearing on the proposed budget for July 2025 - June 2026 will be held on the 18th day 

of June, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at the Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago St., Jonesville, MI.    

 

 The property tax rate of 16.388 mills (unchanged) proposed to be 

levied to support the proposed budget will be a subject of this hearing. 

 
The proposed budget in detail will be available for public review in person at the Jonesville City 

Hall or online at:  http://jonesville.org/OurCity/PublicNoticesHearings.aspx, beginning June 9, 

2025. 



Page 1 of 8 

 

2025-14 
 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 
COUNTY OF HILLSDALE 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

RESOLUTION – CITY FEE SCHEDULE 

 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Jonesville, County of Hillsdale, State of Michigan, held 
in City Hall in said City on the 18th day of June, 2025, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
PRESENT:   
 

ABSENT:   
 

The following resolution was offered by Councilperson __________ and supported by Councilperson 
__________. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is committed to delivering government services as efficiently as possible 
while being responsible with City resources; and 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Jonesville has identified certain services where it is reasonable to expect the 

costs to be paid by the user or users of said services, rather than the taxpayers at large; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to update the Fee Schedule, based on the Department Head 

recommendations regarding the cost of delivery of certain services. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby adopt the Fee 

Schedule, as stated in Attachment A through Attachment G of this Resolution; said new Fee Schedule shall be 
effective on July 1, 2025. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all resolutions and policies, and all parts thereof, in conflict with 

this Resolution are hereby rescinded. 
 

AYES:   
 

NAYS:    
 

ABSENT:  
_____________________________________ 

LaNae Baker, Deputy Clerk 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Jonesville, County of Hillsdale, Michigan at a Regular Meeting held on the 18th day of 
June, 2025, and that public notice was given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as 
amended, including in the case of a special or rescheduled meeting notice by publication or posting at least 
eighteen (18) hours prior to the time set for the meeting. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
LaNae Baker, Deputy Clerk 
 
 



Page 2 of 8 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

CEMETERY  

 
Lot Prices 

 Cost per Grave $500.00 
 
Graves in the Cemetery Annex are generally sold in two and four grave Lots.  Some single grave sites are 

available in the Annex or in Section S of the Cemetery. 

 
Grave Openings and Closings 

 Adult  $550.00 
 Child  $350.00 
 Infant  $250.00 
 Cremation $300.00 (up to two cremation burials in a single grave site) 
 
 November 1st through March 31st additional charge   $  50.00 
 Weekend Opening and Closing additional charge  $200.00 
 Recognized Holidays additional charge (see below)  $100.00 
 
No burials will take place on Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, New Year’s Eve, or New Year’s 

Day. 

 

An additional burial charge will apply to burials on other City recognized holidays, which include: President’s 

Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Veteran’s Day, the Day after Thanksgiving. 

 

The City permits formal observances by local organizations on the patriotic holidays in the Cemetery; those 

wishing to schedule burials on these holidays will need to coordinate funeral times with the City. 

 
Disinterment 

 Disinterment   $600.00 
 Disinterment of Cremation $400.00 
 
Foundations 

 Installation of Monument Foundations  $0.50 per square inch 
 
Section VII (2) of the City of Jonesville Cemetery Rules and Regulations require the foundation to extend a 

minimum of four (4) inches beyond each side of the marker or monument 

 
Transfer of Burial Rights 

 Cost per Grave $20.00 

 
 
  



Page 3 of 8 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

CITY HALL/PARKS AND RECREATION 

 
Transaction Fees 

 Credit and Debit Cards   3% of transaction (minimum charge of $2.00) 
 Electronic Checks (ACH)  $3.00 for transactions up to $10,000;  

$10.00 for transactions over $10,000 
 Non-Sufficient Funds (NSF) Check $50.00 
 
Notary Public 

 City Resident  No Charge 
 Non-Resident  $10.00 
 
Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) Abatement 

 New Abatement Application Fee $250.00 
 Transfer Existing IFT Abatement $100.00 
 
Peddler’s License  No Charge  
 
Recreational Baseball and Softball 

 City Residents   $60.00 per child or $150.00 per family of 3 or more 
 Non-Residents   $75.00 per child or $200.00 per family of 3 or more 
 Sponsorships   $300.00 
 
Wright Street Park Pavilion Restroom Reservation 

 Refundable Deposit (All Users)  $50.00 
 
  



Page 4 of 8 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 12-2 of the Code of Ordinances, the City Council may establish charges for services 
provided by the Fire Department.  The amount of such charges shall be established by resolution and shall offset 
the cost of services provided by the Fire Department. 
 
All fire incidents will be billed a minimum of one hour. 
 
Equipment 

 Truck 531 and 532     $250.00/hr 
 Truck 533 and 535     $175.00/hr 
 Truck 539, 561 and 575     $150.00/hr 
 Truck 571 and 572     $75.00/hr 
 Chemicals Used/Materials Equipment Destroyed  Replacement Cost 
 
Staffing 

 Chief and Assistant Chief $50.00/hr 
 Lieutenant and Captain  $40.00/hr 
 Firefighters   $25.00/hr 
 
Incidents 

 Jaws Extractions    $100.00/hr, plus equipment and staffing 
 Carbon Monoxide Investigations  $25.00/hr, plus equipment and staffing 
 False Alarms/Fire/Automated No charge for first per year; second and subsequent 

charged at equipment and staffing 
 Smoke Detectors and Odor Investigations Equipment and staffing 
 
  



Page 5 of 8 

 

ATTACHMENT D 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
Impounded Vehicles 

Release of Impounded Motor Vehicle  $20.00 
 

Municipal Civil Infractions 

 First Violation          $100.00 
 Second Violation for the Same Offense Within a Four-Year Period   $150.00 
 Third Violation for the Same Offense Within a Four-Year Period    $250.00 
 Fourth or Subsequent Violation for the Same Offense Within a Four-Year Period  $500.00 
 
  



Page 6 of 8 

 

ATTACHMENT E 

UTILITIES 

 
Water Charges 

Meter Size (Inches) 
Monthly Base Charge 

(Initial 2,000 Gallons) 
Water 

Maintenance Fee 
5/8-inch or 3/4-inch $  15.24 $  1.66 
1-inch $  38.17 $  2.46 
1¼-inches or 1½-inches $  76.33 $  4.42 
2-inches $121.18 $  5.40 
2-inches Compound $121.18 $12.84 
3-inches Compound $244.29 $18.56 
4-inches Compound $381.66 $24.22 

 

Commodity Charge (Over 2,000 Gallons) $2.66 per 1,000 Gallons 
Water Tower Maintenance Fee   $2.85 per month 
 
After Hours Call-in Charge   $200.00 
Water Shut Off Fee    $50.00 
Water Tap Fee     $1,000.00 
Water Lawn Meter    $105.00 

 
Water Hydrant Rental Fees (paid by General Fund/Fire Department) $25.00 per hydrant per year 

 
 Bulk Water: 
 Inside City Limits Current Commodity Charge per 1,000 gallons 
 Outside City Limits Twice Current Commodity Charge per 1,000 gallons 
 Trip Fee  $25.00 
 
Sewer Charges  

Meter Size (Inches) 
Monthly Base Charge 

(Initial 2,000 Gallons) 
5/8-inch or 3/4-inch $  34.38 

1-inch $  79.18 

1¼-inches or 1½-inches $153.83 

2-inches $243.42 

2-inches Compound $243.42 

3-inches Compound $482.43 

4-inches Compound $751.23 

 
Commodity Charge (Over 2,000 Gallons) $10.49 per 1,000 Gallons 
Sewer Tap Fee     $2,000.00 

 
  



Page 7 of 8 

 

ATTACHMENT F 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT/LABORATORY 
 
Laboratory 

Total & Fecal Coliform Bacteria $20.00 
Nitrate $20.00  
Nitrite $20.00 
Ammonia Nitrogen $30.00 
Fluoride  $40.00 
Hardness $10.00 
Iron  $10.00 
Chlorine  $15.00 
Chloride $10.00 
pH $10.00 
5-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand $15.00 
Suspended Solids  $10.00 
Volatile Suspended Solids  $10.00 
Phosphorus $30.00 
Sulfate  $10.00 
Complete Lagoon Sample $105.00 

 
Bacterial Collection Fee  $60.00 plus mileage 

 
 
Equipment 

Vactor  Current equipment rental rate (per State of Michigan Schedule), plus Operator wage 
and benefits 

Camera  Current equipment rental rate (per State of Michigan Schedule), plus Operator wage 
and benefits 

 
 
  



Page 8 of 8 

 

ATTACHMENT G 

ZONING 

 
Zoning Permits 

 New Building or Addition 
 < 200 square feet $50.00 
 201 – 500 square feet $55.00 
 501 – 2,000 square feet $200.00 
 Each add’l 1,000 square feet or portion thereof $25.00 
 
 Residential Garage or Storage Building 

  < 200 square feet $50.00 
  200 square feet or more $75.00 
 
 Miscellaneous Permits 

  Removal or Demolition of a Building No Charge 
  Fence $50.00 
  Driveway, Approach, Paved Pad,  
        Foundation or Private Sidewalk $50.00 
  Decks/Porches (without roof) $50.00 
  Swimming Pool $50.00 
  Seasonal Use $100.00 
  Zoning Compliance for Structures not Listed $100.00 
 
 
Planning Commission  
 Site Plan Review $100.00 
 Rezoning Request $500.00 
 Special Land Uses $500.00 
 Plat Approval (Preliminary and Final) $500.00, plus 
   legal and engineering  
 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

 Variance Request $250.00 
 Interpretation $250.00 
 Classification of Nonconforming Use $250.00  
 
Special Meeting 

 City Council $500.00 
 Planning Commission or ZBA $250.00 





Jeffrey M. Gray

City Manager

July 1, 2025 June 30, 2026
1,000.00



















CITY OF JONESVILLE 

COUNTY OF HILLSDALE 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

 

 

NOTICE OF HEARING 

 

JULY 16, 2025 

 

 

TAKE NOTICE, that the City Council of the City of Jonesville, Hillsdale County, Michigan, 

will hold a hearing pursuant to Section 5 (2) of the Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial 

Development Districts law of 1974, the same being Michigan Public Act 198 of 1974, on the 

16th day of July, 2025, at 6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers at the City Hall, located at 265 E. 

Chicago St., Jonesville, Michigan. 

 

At the hearing the City Council will consider a request from North East Fabrication Company, 

113 Deal Parkway, Jonesville, MI, asking that part of their property, which is designated as an 

Industrial Development District, have issued to them a new Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate.  They are also requesting that Certificate #2016-155 be transferred from the previous 

owner.  Applications have been filed with the City of Jonesville for the tax benefits available 

pursuant to Michigan Public Acts 198 of 1974, and copies of the applications may be reviewed at 

the Jonesville City Hall during regular business hours at any time prior to the Public Hearing 

announced hereby. 

 

Act 198 of 1974, pursuant to which this notice is given, provides that the Assessor of the City of 

Jonesville, the applicant, and a representative of any affected taxing unit with respect to said 

application shall have an opportunity to be heard before the Jonesville City Council, prior to said 

Council acting upon the aforesaid applications. 

                             

 

                                                                                  

          

               Cindy Means, Clerk 

                                       City of Jonesville 

 

The City of Jonesville will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as 

signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the 

meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon a 20-day notice to the City 

of Jonesville, Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the 

City of Jonesville by writing or calling the following: 

 

City of Jonesville 

265 E. Chicago Street 

Jonesville, Michigan 49250 

Telephone: (517) 849-2104 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

H:\Lenore\IFTs\NEFCO Hearing Notice-2025.doc 



INVOICE APPROVAL LIST

1/3Page: 06/12/2025
User: LSPAHR
DB: Jonesville

AmountDescriptionVendor

CITY OF JONESVILLE

06/19/2025

267.75 JFD - ALERTING SUBSCRIPTIONACTIVE911, INC
16,450.00 WWTP - REBUILD ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMERALADDIN ELECTRICAL

70.34 CITY HALL COPIER MAINTENANCEAPPLIED INNOVATION
1,118.41 LOCAL/LONG DISTANCEAT&T

628.30 CITY HALL/JPD/JFD CLEANING SERVICESBAKER, VICKI/B & B CLEANING, LLC
229.79 JFD - GLOVESBOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC
198.01 JFD - GASOLINEBRINER OIL CO., INC.
502.68 JPD/WWTP/MVP - GASOLINE
106.41 JFD - GASOLINE
674.66 JPD/WWTP/MVP - GASOLINE

1,481.76 

4,879.33 CEMETERY MAINT/SEXTON SERVICESBUTTERS EXCAVATING & LAWN CARE, LLC
60.00 REC - UMPIRE SERVICESCALLIGAN, MICAH

592.60 WALMART - SUPPLIES/REPAIRSCAPITAL ONE
77.00 WWTP - AIR COMPRESSOR REPAIRCLARK ELECTRIC, INC.
40.00 CITY HALL/JPD OUTSIDE WINDOW CLEANINGCLEAR VIEW B.R. LLC
57.90 JPD - UNIFORMSCMP DISTRIBUTORS, INC.
38.75 CEMETERY ELECTRICITYCONSUMERS ENERGY
43.94 JFD - EMERGENCY SIREN ELECTRICITY

1,385.80 IRON REMOVAL PLANT ELECTRICITY
1,468.49 

3,714.69 MAJOR/LOCAL/ST HWY STREET SWEEPINGCURBCO SWEEPING
36.63 JPD COPIER MAINTENANCECURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONS

236.31 JFD - TRUCK 535 SERVICEDEPENDABLE FIRE APPARATUS, LLC
207.86 JFD - TRUCK 569 SERVICE
207.86 JFD - TRUCK 539 SERVICE

652.03 

587.06 JFD - FIRE HOSEDINGES FIRE COMPANY
76.95 MVP - VEHICLE REPAIRSD-P EQUIPMENT CO.
90.00 REC - CONCESSION STAND ASSISTANTDUNLAP, MILEY R

150.00 REC - CONCESSION STAND ASSISTANT
240.00 

3,336.10 WATER - NEW METERSFERGUSON WATERWORKS #3386
3,881.80 JFD - HOSE/LADDER/NOZZLE TESTINGFIRE CATT, LLC

251.23 WWTP - SUPPLIES/WATER - REPAIRSFIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA
153.30 GRAY -ZOOM MEMBERSHIP/SUPPLIES/CITIZENSHIP
882.33 REC CONCESSIONS SUPPLIES
70.00 JPD - CAR WASHES

390.94 JPD - SUPPLIES/JFD - TRAINING
134.89 WWTP - REPAIRS

1,882.69 

5,000.00 WWTP - IPP DEVELOPMENTFLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENG, INC.
476.09 CITY HALL WINDOW REPAIRG & G GLASS, INC.
42.90 ORDINANCE 225 HEARING NOTICEGANNETT MICHIGAN LOCALIQ
60.00 REC - UMPIRE SERVICESGRIFFITHS, CHANDLER

600.00 REC - UMPIRE SERVICESHEATH, CLARA
150.00 REC - CONCESSION STAND ASSISTANTHENRY, JACLYN D
120.00 REC - CONCESSION STAND ASSISTANT

270.00 

348.76 WWTP - TELEVISE SEWERHILLSDALE B.P.U.
282.68 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWALHILLSDALE DAILY NEWS
350.00 REC - COUNTY SOFTBALL/5 TEAMSHILLSDALE, CITY OF
240.00 REC - UMPIRE SERVICESHUTSON, LEONARD
240.00 REC - UMPIRE SERVICES

480.00 

504.00 WATER - RESIDENTIAL CROSS CONNECTION PROGRAMHYDROCORP, INC
586.67 WATER - COMMERCIAL CROSS CONNECTION PROGRAM

1,090.67 

3,947.88 WATER - SUPPLIESIDEXX DISTRIBUTION CORP.
291.37 SUPPLIES/REPAIRSJONESVILLE HARDWARE
41.97 JFD/LOCAL ST - SUPPLIES/REPAIRSJONESVILLE LUMBER
42.64 DDA - DRINKING FOUNTAINJONESVILLE, CITY OF

117.91 JFD - WATER/SEWER



INVOICE APPROVAL LIST

2/3Page: 06/12/2025
User: LSPAHR
DB: Jonesville

AmountDescriptionVendor

CITY OF JONESVILLE

06/19/2025

52.95 JPD - WATER/SEWER
52.95 CITY HALL WATER/SEWER
52.95 DPW BUILDING WATER/SEWER

142.19 WWTP WATER/SEWER
54.74 WRIGHT ST PARK WATER/SEWER

516.33 

2,000.00 WWTP - PULL YEOMANS PUMP FOR REPAIRKENNEDY INDUSTRIES, INC.
4,409.50 INSTALL REPAIRED ALLIS CHALMERS PUMP

6,409.50 

143.10 JPD - RADAR REMOTE REPLACEMENTKUSTOM SIGNALS, INC.
170.00 REC - PORTABLE RESTROOMLAPEW SANITATION
150.00 REC - UMPIRE SERVICESLENNOX, JACE
90.00 REC - UMPIRE SERVICESLEWIS, BROOKIE M.

277.50 LEGAL FEESLOVINGER & THOMPSON, P.C.
2,800.00 ANNUAL RETAINER FEE

3,077.50 

624.95 JFD - FIRE BOOTSMACQUEEN EMERGENCY
700.00 REC - UMPIRE SERVICESMANN, LEWIS
600.00 REC - UMPIRE SERVICES

1,300.00 

90.00 REC - CONCESSION STAND ASSISTANTMEANS, AMEILIA R
150.00 REC - CONCESSION STAND ASSISTANT

240.00 

75.00 WATER - TESTINGMERIT LABORATORIES
408.00 WWTP - TESTING

483.00 

215.50 LABOR LAW POSTERSMICHIGAN CHAMBER SERVICES, INC.
902.99 WWTP GAS SERVICEMICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES
48.58 JPD GAS/HEAT SERVICE

160.82 IRON REMOVAL PLANT GAS SERVICE
110.86 JFD GAS/HEAT SERVICE
52.62 CITY HALL GAS/HEAT SERVICE
61.26 GAS LIGHT SERVICE
58.02 DPW BUILDING GAS SERVICE

1,395.15 

2,749.78 MOWING/WEED CONTROLMICHIGAN LAWN & LANDSCAPE
2,200.00 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIPMICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 
1,927.00 WORK COMP QUARTERLY INVOICEMML WORKERS COMPENSATION FUND

150.00 REC - CONCESSION STAND ASSISTANTMONROE, BLAYKE C
90.00 REC - CONCESSION STAND ASSISTANT

240.00 

200.00 JPD - UNIFORM EMBLEMSNYE UNIFORM COMPANY
21.21 JPD - UNIFORMS

221.21 

200.00 ASSISTANT REC DIRECTORPAGE, BRITTANY
350.00 ASSISTANT REC DIRECTOR/UMPIRE SERVICES

550.00 

1,500.00 IRP - ANNUAL SERVICE WELL & HIGH SERVICE PUMPSPEERLESS-MIDWEST, INC.
112.11 PARKS/MVP - REPAIRSPERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVE
364.53 POSTAGE - WATER/SEWER BILLSPOSTMASTER
27.24 MVP - REPAIRSREDLINE EQUIPMENT
89.07 MVP - REPAIRS
(6.12)MVP - REPAIRS

110.19 

8.21 UB refund for account: 000469-08RINGMAN DANNY AND HELEN
125.00 REC - SANDY KOUFAX/1 TEAMSOUTHERN MI BASEBALL LEAGUE
44.37 UB refund for account: 000974-76STANTON CONNER
33.00 JPD - LEIN ACCESSSTATE OF MICHIGAN

238.50 JFD - CAMPFIRE PERMIT FORMSSTOCKHOUSE CORPORATION
31.25 REC - POSTCARDS

165.00 JFD - RACK CARDS
165.00 REC - SPONSOR BANNERS



INVOICE APPROVAL LIST

3/3Page: 06/12/2025
User: LSPAHR
DB: Jonesville

AmountDescriptionVendor

CITY OF JONESVILLE

06/19/2025

599.75 

2,022.60 JFD - TRAINING MANAGEMENT MEMBERSHIPTARGET SOLUTIONS LEARNING
509.25 JPD/JFD PEST CONTROLTHE HOUSE MOUSE LLC
84.01 DDA - STREETSCAPE REPAIRS/MVP - VEHICLE REPAIRSTRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN
57.15 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTALUNIFIRST CORPORATION
57.15 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTAL
17.25 MVP - SHOP TOWELS
57.15 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTAL
17.25 MVP - SHOP TOWELS
57.15 WWTP - UNIFORM RENTAL
36.93 CITY HALL/JPD - FLOOR MATS

300.03 

249.63 WATER - REPAIRSUSA BLUEBOOK
207.00 WWTP - SUPPLIES

1,855.30 WWTP - SUPPLIES
504.32 WWTP - SUPPLIES

2,816.25 

6,851.64 ANNUAL SERVICE CONTRACTVC3, INC.
378.49 JPD/WWTP/DPW-CELL PHONES/RADIO TOWER/JPD/JFD-MODEMSVERIZON WIRELESS
177.00 MAHONEY - MEMBERSHIP RENEWALWATER ENVIRONMENT FEDERATION
350.00 REC - UMPIRE SERVICESYOUNG, CARSON

Total: 94,201.39 



Jonesville Police Department 
116 West Chicago Road 

Jonesville, Michigan. 49250 
 

911 Police Service Administration (517) 849-2101  FAX (517) 849-2520 
 
 
 

ACTIVITY SUMMARY FOR MAY 2025 
 

Total reports written:  56 
Aggravated Assault: 1 
Assault and Battery: 1 
Intimidation/Stalking: 1 
Fraud: 1 
Stolen Property: 1 
OWID: 0 
Retail Fraud: 4 
Family Abuse/Neglect: 1 
Mental Health Petition: 0 
Non-Violent Domestic: 0 
Driving Law Violations: 1 
Obstructing Justice: 1 
Public Roadway Accidents: 3 
Private Property Accidents: 5 
Other Arrests:  4 (warrants, traffic-DWLS/Revoked, etc.) 
Civil Matter/Family Disputes: 6 
Traffic Policing:  2 
Medical Emergency: 7 
Trespass: 1 
Nuisance Animals: 1 
Ordinance Violations: 2 (warnings) 
Lost and Found Property: 0 
Suspicious Situations: 9 
General Assistance: 13 
Traffic/Moving Violations: 11 
Warrants Received from Prosecutor: 6 
 



114 W. Chicago St.

Jonesville, MI 49250

(517) 849-2101

(517) 849-2520 Fax

Run Members Date Type of call Location City Fayette Scipio Mutual Training

71 7 5/3/2025 Grass/Brush Fire 1751 E Sterling Rd X

72 7 5/3/2025 Grass/Brush Fire 2927 Genesee Rd X

73 5 5/4/2025 Trainings Station 5 X

74 8 5/5/2025 PI Accident 3570 Genesee Rd. X

75 6 5/8/2025 Wires Down 3590 Jonesville Rd Lot 25 X

76 6 5/16/2025 Grass/Brush Fire 1877 W. Moore Rd. X

77 8 5/17/2025 Grass/Brush Fire Hastings Lake and Cranberry Lake Rd X

78 8 5/21/2025 PI Accident Milnes Rd&North Adams Rd X

79 5 5/22/2025 Structure Fire 3477 Genesee RD X

80 3 5/23/2025 Structure Fire 260 Gaige St X

Monthly Calls
City Fayette Scipio Mutual Training Totals

City Fayette Scipio Mutual January 9 4 0 5 3 21

36 13 7 15 Febuary 7 0 3 2 2 14

Training March 12 2 1 3 2 20

9 April 7 1 1 5 1 15

May 1 6 2 0 1 10

Training Hrs Offered 32.5 June 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total for May 10 July 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total for the Year 80 August 0 0 0 0 0 0

September 0 0 0 0 0 0

October 0 0 0 0 0 0

November 0 0 0 0 0 0

December 0 0 0 0 0 0

Totals 36 13 7 15 9 80

Year Total Type of Call

Runs for May 2025



 

 

MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT 
                                May 2025 

 
SUBMITTED: June 10 ,2025       
 
WATER FLOW    WASTEWATER FLOW 
MAXIMUM  361,000  MAXIMUM  406,400 
MINIMUM  130,000  MINIMUM  241,800 
AVERAGE  195,000  AVERAGE  274,600 
TOTAL  6.043 MG  TOTAL  8.514 MG 
 
CALLOUTS:  Two at the WWTP   
-May 2, Denton Kelley was called in for a plugged primary pump. 
-May 6, Denton Kelley was called in for failure of air compressor #2. 
 
OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
 
The plant was in compliance with the NPDES permit limitations during the month of 
May 2025.    
 
The Wastewater Plant Laboratory processed 197 Coliform Bacteria tests, 43 Nitrate tests 
and 31 Nitrite tests in May 2025.  Totaling $5,420. The annual totals to date are 800 
Coliform Bacteria, 122 Nitrates, and 77 Nitrites.  Totaling $19,980 for 2025.  These are 
gross totals before expenses. 
 
Shawn wrote for his B Waste Water License. 
 
Denton wrote for his D Wast Water License. 
 
Peerless Midwest Inc. performed routine service and maintenance of the Well and High 
Service Pumps at the Iron Removal Plant. 
  
Aladin Electric completed the necessary repairs on the transformer at the WWTP. 
 
The first of three rounds of grab samples were taken for the PFAS testing of the sewer 
collection system. 
 
The distribution system underwent hydrant flushing and used approximately 500,000 
gallons of water during that process.  This includes flushing of private hydrants at 
Martinrea. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

5-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand 
NPDES Permit 30 Day Average Limit is 4 mg/l 
NPDES Permit Daily Maximum-10 mg/l 
The BOD-5 test tells us how much of the oxygen in the water is being used up or 
demanded by the waste in the water.  High oxygen demand will deplete the oxygen in the 
receiving water.  This will have adverse effects on the quality of life (fish) in the  
Receiving stream. 
Jonesville Monthly Average—2.0 mg/l    
Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—98.7 % 
Daily Maximum—3 mg/l 
 
Total Suspended Solids 
NPDES Permit Limit is 20 mg/l 
Suspended solids are very important in controlling the process in the plant.  Suspended 
solids are removed via settling clarifiers and are pumped to the anaerobic digester for 
treatment.  The digested biosolids are applied to farmland at agronomic rates as fertilizer. 
Jonesville Monthly Average—2.3 mg/l 
Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—98.3% 
Daily Maximum—5 mg/l 
 
Total Phosphorus 
NPDES Permit Limit 1 mg/l Year Round 
Phosphorus is a nutrient that promotes growth.  In fact, farmers use phosphorus as a 
fertilizer on crop lands.  Phosphorus is found in many cleaning agents and industrial 
processes.  Excessive phosphorus in wastewater promotes the excessive growth of micro 
and macro-organisms in the receiving stream.  In other words, phosphorus promotes 
excessive growth of algae and seaweed.  These plants demand oxygen from the water and 
tend to decrease the quality of life in the receiving stream. 
Jonesville Monthly Average—0.80 mg/l 
Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—77.8 % 

 
Ammonia Nitrogen 
Monthly Average Limit is 0.5 mg/l 
Daily Maximum Limit is 2.0 mg/l 
Ammonia Nitrogen is the result of bacterial decomposition of organic nitrogen. Examples 
Of organic nitrogen include animal and plant protein, amino acids and urea from urine.  
Ammonia nitrogen is a very unstable form of nitrogen.  In wastewater plants ammonia 
nitrogen is oxidized to form nitrite nitrogen.  Further oxidation of nitrite nitrogen will 
form the stable compound called nitrate nitrogen.  This process is called nitrification and 
occurs in the trickling filter towers.  If nitrification does not occur in the treatment plant, 
it will occur in the receiving stream once again depriving oxygen from the aquatic 
population.  Because of the sensitive nature of the microorganisms involved in the 
nitrification process, the ammonia nitrogen limits are about the hardest to hit. 
Jonesville Monthly Average—0.056 mg/l 
Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—99.7% 
Jonesville Daily Maximum—0.177 mg/l  
 
Shawn Mullaly/Rick Mahoney 



 

                                                                                                                                         Charles Crouch 
                                                                                                                                         DPW Superintendent  

                      City of Jonesville DPW Monthly Report  

                                            May 2025                                           
 

Staff and I have been responding to MISS DIG tickets. 

Staff and I began and completed tractor brush collection.     

Staff and I cleaned debris from all storm drains and coordinated another street sweeping with Curbco. 

Staff and I trimmed multiple trees around the city.  

Staff and I continue to work with residents assisting them with water shut-offs so they can make internal repairs to there 
plumbing as needed. 

Staff and I have been assisting residents with other individual water concerns like low flow issues and high usage issues.   

Staff and I prepared a multitude of things for the city’s River Fest and activities.     

Staff and I have been working along with sub-contractor Dukes to help identify the city’s unknown water services.   

Staff and I delivered multiple dump trucks to residents for brush collection.   

I worked along with city hall staff to complete and submit the budget.  

I worked with many sub-contractors to get quotes for the city for its multiple upcoming projects.     

Staff and I collected downtown flower pots from Rakers and placed them around downtown.   

Staff collected multiple carcasses around the city.          

Staff and I worked with Wolverine Engineering on the “Punch List” for the West Street project.  

Staff and I responded to a resident’s water service leaking underground and repaired it.  

Staff and I completed spring hydrant flushing.  

Staff mowed road edges along city property’s, major , local and state roads.    

Staff has continues pulling weeds for the season. 

Staff has continued grading road edges. 

I have been completing multiple zoning applications for business and residents.  

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     



CITY OF JONESVILLE

CASH BALANCES

May-2025 BANK BALANCE

GENERAL FUND:

General Fund Now Checking 101-000-001 0.00

General Fund ICS 101-000-002 5,795.21

General Fund Fire Insurance Escrow  101-000-002.100 1.61

General Fund CLASS Acct 101-000-007 1,970,080.63

General Fund Cemetery CLASS Acct 101-000-007.100 107,109.34

General Fund Alloc of Assets CLASS 101-000-007.200 475,821.88

MAJOR STREETS:

Major Streets Now Checking 202-000-001 4,383.13

Major Streets CLASS Acct 202-000-007 768,993.81

LOCAL STREETS:

Local Streets Now Checking 203-000-001 5,609.72

Local Streets CLASS Acct 203-000-007 739,134.73

STATE HIGHWAY:

State Highway Now Checking 211-000-001 17,198.73

L.D.F.A.:

LDFA Operating Now Checking 247-000-001 43,427.64

LDFA CD - Flagstar Bank 247-000-003.200 250,000.00

LDFA CD - So MI Bank & Trust 247-000-003.300 250,000.00

LDFA Operating CLASS Acct 247-000-007 3,704,477.40

D.D.A.:

DDA Now Checking 248-000-001 38,111.02

DDA Operating CLASS Acct 248-000-007 187,297.56

SEWER FUND:

Sewer Receiving Now Checking 590-000-001 66,236.73

Sewer Bond & Interest Checking 590-000-001.300 10.00

Sewer Receiving CLASS Acct 590-000-007 431,128.61

Sewer Plant Improv. CLASS Acct 590-000-007.200 1,487,197.02

WATER FUND:

Water Receiving Now Checking 591-000-001 32,065.83

Water Receiving CLASS Acct 591-000-007 501,390.17

Water Plant Improvement CLASS Acct 591-000-007.100 442,382.06

Water Bond Reserve CLASS 591-000-007.200 68,401.27

Water RR&I Reserve CLASS 591-000-007.250 57,467.78

Water Tower Maint CLASS Acct 591-000-007.300 59,975.26

Water Maint CLASS Acct 591-000-007.400 101,697.70

MOTOR VEHICLE POOL:

Motor Vehicle Pool Now Checking 661-000-001 21,493.95

Equip. Replace CLASS - Police Car 661-000-007.301 8,719.70

Equip. Replace CLASS - Fire Truck 661-000-007.336 80,779.39

Equip. Replace CLASS - DPW Equip 661-000-007.463 47.33

Equip. Replace CLASS - WWTP/Vactor 661-000-007.590 68,580.27

CURRENT TAX:

Current Tax Checking 703-000-001 10.00

Current Tax Savings Account 703-000-002 0.00

PAYROLL FUND CHECKING: 750-000-001 6,160.00

Lenore\Monthly\Interest and Cash Balances - MMYY.xls GRAND TOTAL 12,001,185.48



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM:  Jeffrey M. Gray, City Manager 

 

DATE:  June 13, 2025 

 

SUBJECT: Request Closed Session – Periodic Personnel Evalua+on 

 

 

Pursuant to Sec+on 8(1)(a) of the Michigan Open Mee+ngs Act, I am reques+ng that my performance 

review be conducted in a closed session of Council.  Thank you for your considera+on. 

 














	Agenda 06-18-25.pdf (p.1-2)
	Memo 06-18-25.pdf (p.3-6)
	5A-Minutes - 05-21-25.pdf (p.7-9)
	5B-Minutes - 05-29-25.pdf (p.10)
	6A-EDP Minutes - 04-10-25.pdf (p.11-13)
	6B-DDA Minutes - 05-13-25.pdf (p.14)
	6C-PC Minutes - 05-14-25.pdf (p.15-16)
	7A-Truth in Taxation Notice.pdf (p.17)
	7B-Resolution 2025-13 - FY 2025-26 Budget.pdf (p.18-23)
	7B-Budget Hearing Notice.pdf (p.24)
	9A-Resolution 2025-14 - Fee Schedule.pdf (p.25-32)
	9D-Contract for Services.pdf (p.33-34)
	9E-WWTP Truck Memo.pdf (p.35-39)
	9F-Well Pump Repair Memo.pdf (p.40-42)
	9G-NEFCO IFT Hearing Notice.pdf (p.43)
	10-Accts Payable - June.pdf (p.44-46)
	11A-Public Safety Report - May.pdf (p.47-48)
	Public Safety 2.pdf (p.1)
	Public Safety- May.pdf (p.2)

	11B-WWTP Report- May.pdf (p.49-50)
	11C-DPW Report - May.pdf (p.51)
	11D-Cash Report - May.pdf (p.52)
	12-Closed Session Memo.pdf (p.53)
	C1-Fire Dept - Thank You.pdf (p.54-55)
	C2-Protec.pdf (p.56-59)

